
 

 
 

AGENDA 
April 17, 2012 

2:00 P.M. 
Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 

101 E. Wilson Street, 2nd Floor 
Madison, Wisconsin 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
2. Approve Minutes – April 3, 2012 
 
3. Approve Loans 
 
4. Request to Expand Bond Purchase Authority 
 
5. Proposed Land Exchange with Donald Nindorf (E1201) 
 
6. Executive Secretary’s Report 
 
7. Adjourn 

 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 17, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM 2 

APPROVE MINUTES 
 
 

Attached for approval are the minutes from the April 3, 2012, board meeting. 
 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

Board Meeting Minutes 
April 3, 2012 

 
ITEM 1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
Board Chair La Follette called the meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands to order at 2:00 p.m.   
 

Present were:   
Doug La Follette, Board Chair Secretary of State 
Kurt Schuller, Commissioner State Treasurer 
J.B. Van Hollen, Commissioner Attorney General 
Tom German, Deputy Secretary Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
Richard Sneider, Loan Analyst Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 

 
ITEM 2.  APPROVE MINUTES – MARCH 20, 2012 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Schuller moved to approve the minutes; Commissioner Van Hollen seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 3-0. 
 
ITEM 3.  APPROVE LOANS 
 
Deputy Secretary German said the loans had received legal review. 
 
Municipality Municipal Type Loan Amount 
 
1. Bayfield City $230,000.00 
 Bayfield County Rate: 3.00% 
 Application #: 02012093 Term:  10 years 
 Purpose: Purchase new fire truck 
 
2. Pleasant Springs Town $36,500.00 
 Dane County Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012092 Term:  1 year 
 Purpose: Finance fire equipment upgrades 
 
3. Whiting Village $255,000.00 
 Portage County Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012094 Term:  2 years 
 Purpose: Finance street projects 
 
4. Wisconsin Dells School $575,000.00 
 Adams, Columbia, Juneau, Marquette  Rate: 3.00% 
     and Sauk Counties Term:  10 years 
 Application #: 02012095  
 Purpose: Finance land purchase ____________ 
 
 TOTAL $1,096,500.00 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Schuller moved to approve the loans; Commissioner Van Hollen seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 3-0.  
 



Minutes 
April 3, 2012 
Page 2  Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 
ITEM 4.  DEPUTY SECRETARY’S REPORT 
 
Deputy Secretary German reported that Executive Secretary Nelson was meeting today with Representative Tom 
Tiffany in his district. 
 
ITEM 5.  ADJOURN 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Van Hollen moved to adjourn the meeting; Commissioner Schuller seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 3-0. 
 

                    
 Thomas P. German, Deputy Secretary 
 
These minutes have been prepared from a tape recording of the meeting.  The summaries have not been transcribed verbatim.  
Anyone wishing to listen to the tape may do so at the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands, 125 S. Webster Street, Suite 
200, Madison, Wisconsin. 

 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 17, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3 

APPROVE LOANS 
 
Municipality Municipal Type Loan Amount 
 
1. Lena Village $110,000.00 
 Oconto County Rate: 4.00% 
 Application #: 02012099 Term:  20 years 
 Purpose: Finance land purchase 
 
2. Necedah Village $2,000,000.00 
 Juneau County Rate: 5.75% 
 Application #: 02012100 Term:  24 years 
 Purpose: Refund 2001 CDA Lease Revenue Bonds 
 
3. Necedah Village $700,000.00 
 Juneau County Rate: 4.00% 
 Application #: 02012101 Term:  18 years 
 Purpose: Refund 2001 CDA Lease Revenue Bonds 
 
4. Rhinelander School $200,000.00 
 Langlade, Lincoln and Oneida  
   Counties Rate: 3.00% 
 Application #: 02012098 Term:  10 years 
 Purpose: Remodel school kitchen 
 
5. Seymour Town $144,000.00 
 Eau Claire County Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012096 Term:  5 years 
 Purpose: Finance kitchen and parking lot projects 
 
6. Seymour Town $575,832.65 
 Eau Claire County Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012097 Term:  5 years 
 Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #02011005.01                          
 
 TOTAL $3,729,832.65 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 17, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4 

REQUEST TO EXPAND BOND PURCHASE AUTHORITY 
 

Description of Request  
 
BCPL staff is requesting that the Board expand staff investment authority to include Wisconsin Municipal 
General Obligation Bonds and Revenue Bonds rated “A” or higher by Moody’s (or the equivalent rating  by 
another agency). 
 
Summary Explanation  
 
The Board previously granted BCPL staff  the authority to invest up to $150 million in State of Wisconsin 
General Obligation (G.O.) Bonds, $25 million in State of Wisconsin Revenue Bonds, and $75 million in bonds 
issued by Wisconsin municipalities and school districts rated Aa or higher. 
 
Remaining authority not yet invested is approximately $41 million in State of Wisconsin G.O. Bonds, $22 million 
in State of Wisconsin Revenue Bonds, and $19 million in Municipal G.O. Bonds. 
 
This request for new authority is two-fold: 
 

1. Expand staff authority to invest in Municipal G.O. Bonds to include “A” rated securities.  Prior authority 
had been limited to securities that had been rated Aa (or equivalent) or higher, so the new request is to 
invest in securities that have a slightly lower credit rating. 
  

2. Expand staff authority to invest in Revenue Bonds to include bonds issued by municipalities and 
municipal utilities.  Prior revenue bond authority had been limited to bonds issued by the State of 
Wisconsin, so the new request expands the number of authorized revenue bond issuers.  To maintain 
consistency with the above request regarding G.O. Bonds, the required minimum rating for Municipal 
Revenue Bond investments is recommended to be an “A” rating. 

 
Background  
 
Interest rates have remained at historically low levels for an extended period, providing an excellent opportunity 
for our customers to refinance existing BCPL loans through the issuance of municipal bonds.  This process has 
had a significant impact on Trust Fund investments.   
 
BCPL currently manages approximately $892 million in trust fund assets, of which approximately $506 million is 
invested in BCPL State Trust Fund Loans to municipalities and school districts, $204 million is invested in bonds, 
and $182 million is invested in State Investment Fund (SIF).   Loan prepayments have accelerated during the past 
month, and staff now expects cash available for investment to approach $250 million within the next 45 days. 
 
While demand for new BCPL State Trust Fund Loans has picked up from lower levels experienced over the last 
16 months, new demand has not kept pace with loan payoffs.  The expansion of the loan program to include 
revenue loans is now up and running, and the first revenue loan applications have been submitted.  Staff expects 
some improvement in loan demand due to the availability of this program but the extent of additional demand is 
unknown at this time. 
 



Furthermore, there has been a limited supply of Aa rated state and municipal bonds available for BCPL 
investment over the past several months.  Other investors have often bid up the prices for these bonds, reducing 
yields to mostly unattractive levels.  Staff believes that interest rates will increase (perhaps dramatically) within 
the foreseeable future so long-term investing in this environment requires selectivity. 
 
Staff believes that to maintain beneficiary income levels in future years, it is important to achieve an investment 
allocation minimizing funds held in SIF, which currently pays only .15% annually.  As investment opportunities 
within the loan program and authorized bond categories seem to have been fully exploited at the current time, new 
investment alternatives should be considered.  While staff will be making additional recommendations over the 
next weeks and months, the scope of this request is limited to an expansion of current bond purchase authorities. 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. “A” Rated Bonds - Expanding staff authority to invest in Municipal G.O. Bonds including “A” rated 
securities will allow investment in bonds issued by communities that have a slightly lower credit rating.  
Although there may be a slight increase in default risk, a study by Moody’s indicated that the average 
cumulative default rate for G.O. debt issued by “A” rated communities from 1970-2009 was 0%.  There 
has never been a default on a municipal bond in Wisconsin, regardless of bond or issuer rating. 

 
2. Municipal and Municipal Utility Revenue Bonds - Prior authority had been limited to revenue bonds 

issued by the State if Wisconsin, so the new request expands the number of authorized revenue bond 
issuers.  To maintain consistency with the above request regarding G.O. Bonds, the required minimum 
rating for Municipal Revenue Bond investments is recommended to be an “A” rating.  This request 
mirrors the BCPL State Trust Fund Loan Program expansion into revenue based obligations.  As with the 
above request, there may be a slight increase in default risk, although the same study by Moody’s 
indicates the average cumulative default rate for “A” rated Revenue Bonds from 1970-2009 at a miniscule 
0.07%. 

 
Expanding staff authority for bond investments will provide BCPL with the ability to take advantage of additional 
opportunities to reduce cash holdings and improve portfolio returns within acceptable risk parameters.  
 
Proposed Resolution  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands expands the 
prior authority to invest up to Seventy-Five Million Dollars ($75,000,000) in Municipal and School District 
General Obligation Bonds to include those bonds rated "A" by Moody's Investors Service, or the equivalent by 
other rating agencies. 
 

ALSO RESOLVED is that the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands expands the prior authority to 
invest up to Twenty-Five Million Dollars ($25,000,000) in State of Wisconsin Revenue Bonds to include Revenue 
Bonds issued by municipalities and municipal utilities within the State of Wisconsin that have been rated "A" or 
higher by Moody's Investors Service, or the equivalent by other rating agencies.  These investments shall be made 
in accordance with Chapter 24 of the Wisconsin Statutes on such terms and conditions as the Executive Secretary 
determines to be reasonable and necessary. This purchase authority shall be in addition to any previous authority 
granted by the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands and shall also include the authority to sell these bonds 
prior to maturity. The Executive Secretary is authorized and directed to execute any documents reasonably 
necessary to complete such transactions 
 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 17, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

PROPOSED LAND EXCHANGE WITH DONALD NINDORF (E1201) 
 
Staff is requesting authority to convey an isolated, landlocked 40 acre parcel of BCPL land in 
Douglas County to Donald Nindorf in exchange for a 40 acre parcel that is adjacent to BCPL’s 
2200 acre Allen Creek Block in Forest County. 
 
BCPL staff recommends the exchange with Donald Nindorf for the following reasons: 

 
• The BCPL property that would be conveyed to Donald Nindorf is an isolated, landlocked, 

moderately productive parcel with a cloud on title located outside of the Consolidation 
Zone. 
 

• The exchange would result in an improvement in BCPL’s timber portfolio. 
 

• The property that would be acquired in the exchange: 
 

o Would reduce the threat from forest fragmentation. 
 
o Would provide additional timber revenue and species diversification. 
 
o Eliminate an in-holding in an existing BCPL block of land, thereby improving 

management efficiency. 
 
The properties to be exchanged have been appraised at approximately equal values. 
 
Attachments: 

Resolution w/Exhibits 
Exhibit A – Incoming Property Summary Analysis 
Exhibit B – Incoming Property Appraisal Certification 
Exhibit C – Outgoing Property Summary Analysis 
Exhibit D – Outgoing Property Appraisal Certification 
BCPL Project Map 

 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 17, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

PROPOSED LAND EXCHANGE WITH DONALD NINDORF (E1201) 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. BCPL currently owns an isolated 40 acre parcel in Douglas County described as the 
SENE of Section 6, Township 44 North, Range 10 West, located in the Town of 
Gordon, Douglas County, Wisconsin (the “BCPL Property”). 
 

B. Donald Nindorf currently owns an adjacent parcel of land described as the SWNW of 
Section 5, Township 44 North, Range 10 West, located in the Town of Gordon, 
Douglas County, Wisconsin (the “Nindorf Property”). 

 
C. Mr. Nindorf constructed a cabin near the West line of his property several years ago.  

Based upon inaccurate information he received from a surveyor, he inadvertently 
built a portion of his cabin on BCPL Property. 

 
D. BCPL staff discovered the encroachment during a routine inspection of the BCPL 

Property and confirmed their discovery by obtaining a new survey showing the cabin 
encroachment.  
 

E. The cabin encroachment appears to be the result of an honest mistake and Mr. 
Nindorf has offered to resolve the problem by exchanging another parcel of land of 
similar value for the BCPL Property. 

 
F. Mr. Nindorf does not own another parcel of land that would be suitable for exchange 

with BCPL so he is willing to purchase another parcel of land that could be used for 
exchange. 

 
G. Mr. Nindorf has offered to purchase 40 acres of land in Forest County more 

particularly described as the SENW of Section 3, Township 40 North, Range 14 East, 
Town of Alvin, Forest County, Wisconsin, that is currently owned by Mr. Tony 
Limbach (the “Limbach Property”).  This Property is located adjacent to a large 
existing block of BCPL property. 

 
H. Mr. Nindorf proposes to exchange the Limbach Property in Forest County for the 

BCPL Property in Douglas County. 
 

I. The Limbach Property has been evaluated by BCPL staff against purchase criteria 
previously adopted by the Board.  The Property has been determined by BCPL staff 



to be appropriate for purchase according to such criteria.  A copy of the summary 
analysis for the incoming property is attached to this resolution as Exhibit A. 

 
J. The Limbach Property has been independently appraised by Steigerwaldt Land 

Services, Inc. at $725 per acre for a total value of $29,000.  A copy of the 
Certification of Appraisal is attached as Exhibit B. 

 
K. The BCPL Property has been evaluated by BCPL staff against sales criteria 

previously adopted by the Board.  The Property has been determined by BCPL staff 
to be appropriate for sale according to such criteria.  A copy of the summary analysis 
for the BCPL Property is attached to this resolution as Exhibit C. 

 
L. The BCPL Property has been independently appraised by Steigerwaldt Land Services, 

Inc. at $750 per acre for a total value of $30,000.  A copy of the Appraisal 
Certification has been attached to this resolution as Exhibit D. 

 
M. BCPL staff  members recommend exchanging the BCPL Property for the Limbach 

Property for the following reasons: 
 

a. BCPL staff has determined that the BCPL Property is appropriate for sale or 
exchange;  
 

b. The exchange will enable BCPL to dispose of a landlocked parcel outside of the 
Consolidation Zone that has a cloud on title and acquire a parcel inside the 
Consolidation Zone that blocks well with existing BCPL property; 
 

c. BCPL staff has determined that the acquisition of the Limbach Property would 
produce timber revenue for the trust fund, improve timberland management 
efficiency and reduce the threat of forest fragmentation; and 
 

d. The values of the properties in the proposed exchange are “approximately equal” 
as the term is defined in Wis. Stat. Section 24.09. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
Public Lands approves the exchange of the BCPL Property with Mr. Nindorf in return for the 
Limbach Property in accordance with Chapter 24 of the Wisconsin Statutes on such terms 
and conditions as the Executive Secretary determines to be reasonable and necessary.  The 
Executive Secretary is authorized and directed to execute any documents reasonably 
necessary to complete such transaction. 



halvev
Text Box
  Item 5 Exhibit A  Page 1



halvev
Text Box
  Item 5 Exhibit A  Page 2



halvev
Text Box
  Item 5 Exhibit A  Page 3



halvev
Text Box
   Item 5 Exhibit B



halvev
Text Box
    Item 5  Exhibit C



halvev
Text Box
   Item 5 Exhibit D



Limbach  Property

Ga
sp

ard
o

State Highway 70

Wilson

Re
dig

Zie
rle

r

Allen
 Cree

k

Lil
y P

ad

Forest County

I N T E R N A L  U S E  O N L Y

 BCPL_I/T - April 11, 2012         E1201-Multi_County-Multi_Town-Nindorf_Exchange-IN-8_X_11.pdf

I N T E R N A L  U S E  O N L Y

Forest

Florence

Vilas

Langlade

Oneida

Marinette

Oconto

____________
BCPL Project #:

E1201
County: Forest

Town: Alvin
Common Name

Nindorf Exchange
 Acres -  40.00

 Fund 745 
____________

NINDORF EXCHANGE
Forest County Parcel to be acquired by BCPL

0 0.250.125
Miles

_____________
 

Incoming

US FOREST SERVICE

Other BCPL Land

µ



Cabin

Nindorf   PropertyBCPL

Townline

Sand

Ba
yfi

eld

Germann

Duck Pond

Douglas County

I N T E R N A L  U S E  O N L Y

 BCPL_I/T - April 11, 2012         E1201-Multi_County-Multi_Town-Nindorf_Exchange-OUT-8_X_11..pdf

I N T E R N A L  U S E  O N L Y

Douglas Bayfield

Washburn SawyerBurnett

____________
BCPL Project #:

E1201
County: Douglas
Town: Gordon
Common Name

Nindorf Exchange
 Acres -  40.00

 Fund 745 
____________

NINDORF EXCHANGE
Douglas County Parcel to be conveyed by BCPL

0 0.10.05
Miles

_____________
 

Outgoing

COUNTY FOREST

Nindorf Property

µ


	Agenda
	April 17, 2012

	Item2_ApproveMinutes
	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	BOARD MEETING
	APRIL 17, 2012
	APPROVE MINUTES


	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	ITEM 1.  CALL TO ORDER
	ITEM 2.  APPROVE MINUTES – MARCH 20, 2012


	Item3_ApproveLoans
	Item4_ExpandBondPurchaseAuthority
	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	BOARD MEETING
	APRIL 17, 2012



	Item5_E1201-Nindorf_Writeup
	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	BOARD MEETING
	APRIL 17, 2012



	Item5_E1201-Nindorf_Resolution
	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	BOARD MEETING
	APRIL 17, 2012



	Item5_E1201-Nindorf_ExhibitA
	Item5_E1201-Nindorf_ExhibitB
	Item5_E1201-Nindorf_ExhibitC
	Item5_E1201-Nindorf_ExhibitD
	Item5_E1201-Nindorf_Map-Incoming
	Item5_E1201-Nindorf_Map-Outgoing



